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ERICKSEN KRENTEL. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSJ - ÀNTS 

INÐEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT 

To the Boarð of Govemance of 
JCFA 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have auðited the accompanying combining fmancial statements of JCFA (a nonprofit 
corporation), which comprise the combining statements of financial position as of June 30, 2022 
anð 202 1, and the related combining statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows 
for the years then ended, and the related notes to the combining financial statements. 

In our opinion, the combining financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position ofJCFA as ofJune 30, 2022 and 2022, and the changes in its net 
assets and cash flows for the years then ended in accorðance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Basisfor Opinion 

We conducted our auðit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
A uc/iting Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of JCFA and to 
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements 
relating to our audit. We believe that the auðit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities ofManageinentfor the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the combining fmancial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepteð in the United States of 
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of fmancial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the combining financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether 
there are conditions or events, considereð in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about 
JCFAs ability to continue as a going concem within one year after the date that the financial 
statements are available to be issued. 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Boarð of Govemance of 
JCFA 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Auditors Responsibilitiesfor the Audit ofthe Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the combining financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, anð to 
issue an auditor s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conðucted m 
accordance with generally accepteð auditing standards, the Louisiana Governmental Audit 
Guide, anð Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. The risk of not ðetecting a material misstatement resulting from frauð is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if 
there is a substantial likelihooð that, indiviðually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such proceðures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of JCFAs internal control. Accordingly, no 
such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about JCFAs ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period oftime. 

We are required to communicate with those chargeð with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, anð certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Boarð of Govemance of 
JCFA 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Supplementaiy Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combining financial 
statements as a whole. The supplementary information contained in the schedule of 
compensation, benefits, and other payments to agency head (Scheðule 1 ), as required by 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513 A.(3), is presented for purposes ofadditional analysis and is 
also not a required part of the combining financial statements. The accompanying schedule of 
expenðitures offederal awards, as requireð by Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederalRegulations Part 
200, Unform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirementsfor Federal 
Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is also not a required part of the 
combining financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was 
deriveð from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records useð to prepare 
the combining financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applieð in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
incluðing comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, anð other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly 
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with GovernmentAuditing Standards, we have also issueð our report dated 
October 3 1, 2022 on our consideration of JCFAs internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of intemal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
anð not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness ofJCFAs intemal control over financial 
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part ofan audit performed in accordance 
with GovernmentAuditing Standards in considering JCFAs intemal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

October 31, 2022 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Certified Public Accountants 



Exhil,it A 

JCFA 
COMBIIflNG STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30. 2022 

CMO West Bank East Bank Lafayette Total 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants receivable 
Prepaid expenses 

lotai current assets 

PROPERTY AND EOUIPMENT: 
Cornputers 
Software 
Furniture and fixtures 
Leasehold improvements 
Vehicics 
Accumulatcd depreciation 

Total property and equipineiit. nct 

Total assets 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

Total current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS: 
Without donor restnctions 
With donor restrictions 

Tota1 net assets  

$ 158,484 $ 60,194 $ 343,552 $ 29,240 $ 591,470 
- 230,935 l 17,918 75,994 424,847 

4.097 - 1,300 11,727 17,124 

162,581 291,129 462,770 116,961 1,033,441 

- 120,227 73,194 15,370 208,791 
- 19,101 - - 19,101 

3,642 - 5,537 10,647 19,826 
- 15,650 95,899 - 111,549 
- 27,050 - - 27,050 

(3,642) (160,838) (164,419) (23,260) (352,159) 

21,190 10,211 2,757 34,158 

$ 162,581 $ 312,319 $ 472,981 $ 119,718 $ 1,067,599 

$ 1,742 $ 10,920 $ 16,251 $ 5,785 $ 34,698 
6,739 44,308 52,827 20,889 124,763 

8,481 55,228 69,078 26,674 159,461 

8,481 55,228 69,078 26,674 159,461 

154,100 257,091 403,903 93,044 908,138 

154,100 257,091 403,903 93,044 908,138 

Totalliabilitesandnetassets $ 162,581 $ 312,319 $ 472,981 $ 119,718 $ 1,067,599 

See acconipanying NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Exhibit A (cont.) 

JCFA 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE30.2021 

CMO West Bank East Bank Lafayette Total 

CURRENT ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Grants receivable 
Prepaid expenses 

lotai current assets 

PROPERTY AND EOUIPMENT: 
Computers 
Software 
Furniture and fixtures 
Leasehold improvements 
Vehicics 
Accumulatcd depreciation 

Total property and equipinciit. nct 

Total assets 

CURRENT LIABILITIES: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

Total current liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS: 
Without donor restnctions 
With donor restrictions 

Tota1 net assets  

S 146,682 S 275,994 $ 430,563 $ 82,936 $ 936,175 
- 172.572 90,915 4,451 267,938 

398 1.855 645 12,090 14,988 

147,080 450,421 522,123 99,477 1,219,101 

- 120,227 73,194 15,370 208,791 
- 19,101 - - 19,101 

3,642 - 5,537 10,647 19,826 
- 15,650 95,899 - 111,549 
- 27,050 - - 27,050 

(3,623) (154,435) (159,488) (18,704) (336,250) 

19 27,593 15,142 7,313 50,067 

$ 147,099 $ 478,014 $ 537,265 $ 106,790 $ 1,269,168 

S 2,499 $ 15,665 $ 18,979 $ 5,273 $ 42,416 
10,500 54,387 59,336 24,503 148,726 

12,999 70,052 78,315 29,776 191,142 

12,999 70,052 78,315 29,776 191,142 

134,100 407,962 458,950 77,014 1,078,026 

134,100 407,962 458,950 77,014 1,078,026 

Total liabilites andnetassets $ 147,099 $ 478,014 $ 537,265 $ 106,790 $ 1,269,168 

See acconipanying NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Exhibit B 

JCFA 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENÐED JUNE 30. 2022 

CMO West Bank Campus 
Without Donor With Donor Without Donor With Donor 

Restrictions Restrictions Totai Restrictions Restrictions Total 
REVENUE: 
State and local public schooi funding 
Federal grants 
Other state funds 
Contiibutions 
Other income 
Net assets released from restrictions 

Total revenue  

$ -$ 

3,261 
743,209 

746,470  

- $ - $ 779,752 $ 
- - 319,884 
- - 46,753 
- 3,261 - 
- 743,209 382,619 

= 746,470 1,529,008 -  

- $ 779,752 
- 319,884 
- 46,753 

- 382,619 

= 1,529,008 

61,952 - 61,952 70,201 - 70,201 
378 - 378 43,559 - 43,559 

15,869 - 15,869 270,507 - 270,507 
1,204 - 1,204 205,273 - 205,273 

213,764 - 213,764 14,233 - 14,233 
64,990 - 64,990 223,924 - 223,924 

39 - 39 490,063 - 490,063 
- - - 4,380 - 4,380 

1,706 - 1,706 22,943 - 22,943 
19 - 19 6,403 - 6,403 

230,643 - 230,643 38,542 - 38,542 
- - - 289,851 - 289,851 

135,906 - 135,906 - - - 

726,470 - 726,470 1,679,879 - 1,679,879 

20,000 - 20,000 (150,871) - (150,871) 

134,100 - 134,100 407,962 - 407,962 

$ 154,100 $ - $ 154,100 $ 257,091 $ - S 257,091 

See accompanying NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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I\ll I: 
¡ioiii .civices: 

Special education program 
Career and technical education 
Other instnictional programs 
Pupii support services 
Instructiona1 staff services 
School administration 
Operation and maintenance ofplant 
Student transportation services 
Food service 
Depreciation 

Management and general: 
General adininistration 
Business services 
Central services 

Totai expenses 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning ofyear 

Net assets, end of year 



East Bank Cani 

Without l)onor With l )t,nor 

Restnetions Restrietions 

S 1,878,431 $ 
909,971 

58,852 

15,000 
l 72,468 

3,034,722 ____________ 

___________ 1,atyette Campus 2022 

Without I)onor With I )onor Interfund Combineð 

Total Restrietions Restrietions 1otal — lliniinations Totals 

1,878,431 $ 703,160 $ - $ 703,l60 $ -s 3,361,343 

909,971 217,257 - 217,257 1,447,112 

58,852 - - - 105,605 

15,000 175 - 175 18,436 
172,468 118 - 118 (743,209) 555,205 

3,034,722 920,710 - 920,710 (743,209) 5,487,701 

Exhibit B (cont.) 

JCFA 
COMI)INENG STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 

F()R lTTE YFAR FNDFD JUNF 30, 2022 

REVENUE: 
State and ioeal public school funding 

Fcderal grants 
()ther state iunds 
(ontrihutions 

Other ineome 

Net assets released trom restrictions 

Total revenue 

EXPENSES: 

Program services: 

Special education program 
Career and technical education 

Other instructional programs 
l>upil support services 

lnstructional statT services 

School adrninistration 

Operation and maintenance ofplant 
Student transportation services 

Food service 

Depreciatïon 

Management and general: 

General administration 

Business services 
(entral services 

Iotal expenses 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning ofyear 

Net assets, end ofyear  

172,800 - 172,800 78,283 - 78,283 - 383,236 
71,917 - 71,917 5,871 - 5,87! - 121,725 

838,947 - 838,947 208,583 - 208,583 - 1,333,906 
379,336 - 379,336 146,300 - 146,300 - 732,113 

19,395 - 19,395 17,251 - 17,25! - 264,643 

467,000 - 467,000 175,837 - 175,837 - 931,751 

65! ,951 - 651,95! 89,726 - 89,726 - 1,231,779 

9,962 - 9,962 3,981 - 3,981 - 18,323 
22,872 - 22,872 15,541 - 15,541 - 63,062 
4,931 - 4,931 4,556 - 4,556 - 15,909 

43,175 - 43,175 11,032 - 11.032 - 323,392 

319,580 - 319,580 133,778 - 133,778 (743,209) - 
87,903 - 87,903 13,941 - 13,94! - 237,750 

3,089,769 - 3,089,769 904,680 - 904,680 (743,209) 5,657,589 

(55,047) - (55,047) 16,030 - 16,030 - (169,888) 

458,950 - 458,950 77,014 - 77,014 - 1,078,026 

$ 403,903 $ - $ 403,903 $ 93,044 $ - $ 93,044 $ - $ 908,138 

See accoinpanylng NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



Exhibit B (cont.) 

JCFA 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF ACTÌVITIES 

FOR THE YEARENDED JUNE 30. 2021 

REVENUE: 
State and local public school tìinding 
Federal grants 
Other state fiinds 
Contributions 
Other income 
Net assets released from restrictions 

Total revenue 

CMO 

Without Donor With Donor 

Restrictions Restrictions 

S -$ 

716,207 

716,207 ____________ 

Without Donor 

Total Restrictions 

- $ - S 1,428,982 $ 
- - 201,099 
- - 49,787 
- - 101,657 
- 716,207 37,918 

= 716,207 1,819,443 — 

West Bank 

With Donor 

Restrictions Total 

- $ 1,428,982 
- 201,099 
- 49,787 
- 101,657 
- 37,918 

= 1,819,443 

32,823 - 32,823 117,146 - 117,146 
250 - 250 81,151 - 81,151 

8,170 - 8,170 593,741 - 593,741 
708 - 708 257,205 - 257,205 

212,437 - 212,437 12,783 - 12,783 
4,154 - 4,154 286,979 - 286,979 

10,736 - 10,736 222,005 - 222,005 
- - - 2,882 - 2,882 

490 - 490 7,630 - 7,630 
728 - 728 2,263 - 2,263 

175,664 - 175,664 30,106 - 30,106 
- - - 279,321 - 279,321 

270,047 - 270,047 467 - 467 

716,207 - 716,207 1,893,679 - 1,893,679 

- - - (74,236) - (74,236) 

134,100 - 134,100 482,198 - 482,198 

$ 134,10Q $ - $ 134,100 $ 407,962 $ - S 407,962 

See accompanying NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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EXPENSES: 
Program services: 

Special educatioii prograrn 
Career and technical education 
Other instructional programs 
Pupil support services 
Instructiona1 staff services 
School administration 

eration and maintenance of plant 
Student transportation services 
Food service 

reciation 
Management and general: 

General administration 
Business services 
Central services 

Total expenses 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning ofyear 

Net assets, end ofyear 



Exhibit B (c()nt.) 

JCFA 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2021 

East Bank Lafayette 2021 
Without Donor With Donor Without Donor With Donor Interfund Comhined 

Restrictions Restrictions îotal Restrictions Restrictions Total 1lirninations lotais 
REVENUE: 
State and local public school funding $ 1,894,361 $ - $ 1,894,361 $ 716,082 $ - $ 716,082 $ - $ 4,039,425 
Federai grants 352,635 - 352,635 93,969 - 93,969 - 647,703 
Other slate funds 36,288 - 36,288 - - - - 86,075 
Contributions 19,662 - 19,662 1.952 - 1.952 (96.329) 26.942 
Otherincotne 210 - 210 190 - 190 (716,207) 38.318 
Net assets released from restrictions - - - - - - - - 

Tota1 revenue 2,303,156 - 2,303,156 812,193 812,193 (812,536) 4,838,463 

EXPENSES: 
Program services: 

Special education prograrn 142,413 142,413 33,032 
Career and technical cducation 66,364 66,364 13,722 
Other instructional programs 583,213 583,213 207,563 
Pupil support services 295,435 295,435 145,904 
lnstructional stafT services 66,306 66,306 4,425 
School administration 379,048 379,048 157,754 
Operation and maintenance ofplant 205,237 205,237 101,320 
Student transportation services 5,141 5,141 1,721 
Food service 10,140 10,140 2,211 
Depreciation 17.489 17.489 4.702 

Management and general: 
General administration 37,083 37,083 9,141 
Business services 404,298 404,298 128,917 
Central services 258 258 200 

Total expenses 2,212,425 - 2,212,425 810,612 — 

Change in net assets 90,731 - 90,731 1,581 

Net assets, beginning ofyear 368,219 - 368,219 75,433 — 

Net assets, end ofyear $ 458,950 $ - $ 458,950 $ 77,014 $ 

See accompaning NOTES TO FINANCL4L STATEMENTS 
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- 33,032 - 325,414 
- 13,722 - 161,487 
- 207,563 - 1.392,687 
- 145,904 - 699,252 
- 4,425 - 295,951 
- 157,754 - 827,935 
- 101,320 - 539,298 
- 1,721 - 9,744 
- 2,211 - 20,471 
- 4.702 - 25.182 

- 9,141 - 251,994 
- 128,917 (812,536) - 
- 200 - 270,972 

810,612 (812,536) 4,820,387 

- 1,581 - 18,076 

75,433 - 1,059,950 

: $ 77,014 $ - $ 1,078,026 



Exhibit C 

JCFA 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JTJE 30 2022 

CMO 

Program Services Support Services — lotal 

$ 256,064 $ 206,147 $ 462,21 1 
17,839 12,543 30,382 
4,172 2,933 7,105 

306 204 510 
24,210 16,492 40,702 
20,646 1 1,487 32,133 
6,284 30,260 36,544 
8,568 16,118 24,686 
5,003 2,279 7,282 
8,073 2,170 10,243 

- 58,293 58,293 
3,120 5,845 8,965 

1,368 1,628 2,996 
19 - 19 

4,249 4,399  

West Bank 

Prograrn Services Support Services 

$ 554,794 $ 19,207 
34,709 190 
8,117 44 
1,377 - 

29,290 - 
49,196 - 
62,465 388 

1,987 1,793 
36,000 40 
2,544 - 

93,760 - 
1,611 (158 

62,508 1,200 
377,700 - 

5,944 - 
15,816 96 
6,403 - 
7265 15342 

Total 

$ 574,001 
34,899 
8,161 
1,377 

29,290 
49,196 
62,853 

3,780 
36,040 
2,544 

93,760 
1,453 

63,708 
377,700 

5,944 
15,912 
6,403 

23,007 

Salaries 
Social security 
Medicare 
Unernployment 
Retirement 
Other benefits 
Other professiorial services 
Advertising 
Travel 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Rent 
InsuraT1ce 
Cornrnunication 
Repairs and maintenance 
Transportation 
Food service management 
Depreciation expense 
Other 

Total expenses $ 359,921 $ 366,549 $ 726,470 $ 1,351,486 $ 38,542 $ 1,390,028 

See accompanying NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
1 



Exbibit C (cont.) 

.JCFA 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2022 

last 13ank Lafayette 2022 
Program Scrvices Suppurt Serices Total Program Services Support Services îotal Program Services Support Services Total 
$ 1,404,224 $ 18,505 $ 1,422,729 $ 399,690 $ - $ 399,690 $ 2,614,772 $ 243,859 $ 2,858,631 

81,644 1,147 82,791 22,939 - 22,939 157,131 13,880 171,011 
19,227 268 19,495 5,365 - 5,365 36,881 3,245 40,126 

1,652 68 1,720 837 - 837 4,172 272 4,444 
82,899 - 82,899 18,069 - 18,069 154,468 16,492 170,960 

113,979 - 113,979 34,596 - 34,596 218,417 11,487 229,904 
65,687 87,993 153,680 84,533 13,745 98,278 218,969 132,386 351,355 

- - - 63 - 63 8,631 16,118 24,749 
1,146 1,459 2,605 8,165 2,249 10,414 16,301 7,780 24,081 

76,888 - 76,888 17,611 221 17,832 138,572 2,431 141,003 
39,150 - 39,150 5,823 - 5,823 47,517 - 47,517 

165,154 - 165,154 61,469 303 61,772 320,383 303 320,686 
- 248 248 4,008 - 4,008 5,619 58,383 64,002 

111,639 16,576 128,215 34,827 6,432 41,259 212,094 30,053 242,147 
441,162 - 441,162 14,338 - 14,338 833,200 - 833,200 

10,421 - 10,421 4,009 - 4,009 20,374 - 20,374 
12,735 - 12,735 12,472 27 12,499 42,391 1,751 44,142 
4,931 - 4,931 4,556 - 4,556 15,909 - 15,909 
6,573 4,814 11,387 12,559 1,996 14,555 30,646 22,702 53,348 

$ 2,639,111 $ 131,078 $ 2,770,189 $ 745,929 $ 24,973 $ 770,902 $ 5,096,447 $ 561,142 $ 5,657,589 

Salaries 
Socia1 secuiity 
Medicare 
Unemployinent 
Retirctnent 
Other henefits 
Othcr professional services 
Advertising 
Travel 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Rent 
lnsurance 
Cornrnunication 
Repairs and maintenancc 
Transportation 
Food service managernent 
Depreciation expense 
Other 

Total expenses 

See accompanying NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
11 



Exhibit C (cont.) 

JCFA 
COMBINTNG STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 202 1 

CMO West Bank 
Program Services Support Services Total Prograrn Services Support Services — Tota1 
$ 199,302 $ 201,609 $ 400,911 $ 883,729 $ 400 $ 884,129 

12,035 12,308 24,343 49,526 - 49,526 
2,815 2,886 5,701 11,633 - 11,633 

428 285 713 2,534 - 2,534 
16,064 16,209 32,273 58,236 - 58,236 
10,265 10,967 21,232 66,881 - 66,881 

2,335 158,355 160,690 106,571 - 106,571 
6,788 7,960 14,748 - - 
3,820 1,639 5,459 3,550 310 3,860 

403 1,960 2,363 72,581 267 72,848 
- - 16,715 - 16,715 
- - 115,091 - 115,091 

10,736 24,502 35,238 2,915 - 2,915 
3,740 4,483 8,223 101,217 1,200 102,417 

- - 76,409 - 76,409 
- - 2,882 - 2,882 

887 40 927 8,197 165 8,362 
728 - 728 2,263 - 2,263 
150 2,508 2,658 2,855 28,231 31,086 

Salaries 
Social security 
Medicare 
Unemployment 
Retirement 
Other benefits 
Other professional services 
Advertising 
Travel 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Rent 
Insurance 
Communication 
Repairs and maintenance 
Transportation 
Food service management 
Depreciation expense 
Other 

Total expenses $ 270,496 $ 445,71 1 $ 716,207 $ 1,583,785 $ 30,573 $ 1,614,358 

See acconipanying NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Exhibit C (cont.) 

JCFA 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2021 

East Bank Lafayette 2021 
Program Services Support Services Total Program Services Support Services Total Program Services Support Services Total 
$ 1,098,214 $ l 1,557 $ 1,109,771 $ 370,285 $ 149 $ 370,434 $ 2,551,530 $ 213,715 $ 2,765,245 

67,428 691 68,119 22,186 - 22,186 151,175 12,999 164,174 
15,995 161 16,156 5,275 - 5,275 35,718 3,047 38,765 

2,598 172 2,770 1,187 - 1,187 6,747 457 7,204 
62,541 - 62,541 16,678 - 16,678 153,519 16,209 169,728 
83,363 - 83,363 32,927 - 32,927 193,436 10,967 204,403 
79,077 - 79,077 39,590 - 39,590 227,573 158,355 385,928 

- - - - - - 6,788 7,960 14,748 
4,976 1,554 6,530 5,281 226 5,507 17,627 3,729 21,356 

45,345 33 45,378 20,751 - 20,751 139,080 2,260 141,340 
24,368 - 24,368 4,073 - 4,073 45,156 - 45,156 

106,008 - 106,008 74,435 - 74,435 295,534 - 295,534 
- - - 6,865 - 6,865 20,516 24,502 45,018 

92,846 18,196 111,042 38,595 6,746 45,341 236,398 30,625 267,023 
54,079 - 54,079 12,665 - 12,665 143,153 - 143,153 
5,501 - 5,501 1,828 - 1,828 10,211 - 10,211 

10,444 19 10,463 2,518 205 2,723 22,046 429 22,475 
17,489 - 17,489 4,702 4,702 25,182 - 25,182 

514 4,958 5,472 12,513 2,015 14,528 16,032 37,712 53,744 

$ 1,770,786 $ 37,341 $ 1,808,127 $ 672,354 $ 9,341 $ 681,695 $ 4,297,421 $ 522,966 $ 4,820,387 

Salaries 
Social security 
Medicare 
Unemployment 
Retirement 
Other benefits 
Other professional services 
Advertising 
Travel 
Supplies 
Utilities 
Rent 
lnsurance 
Communication 
Repairs and maintenance 
Transportation 
Food service management 
Depreciation expense 
Other 

Total expenses 

See accompanyuig NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
13 



Exhibit D 

JCFA 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 

lnterfund Combined 
CMO West Bank East flank Latyette Eliminations Totals 

S 20,000 $ (150,871) $ (55,047) $ 16,030 $ - $ (169,888) 
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR OPERATING ACTWITIES: 
Change in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to cash and cash equivalents 

from (used for) operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 
Bad debt expense 
(lncrease) decrease in: 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

Net cash from (used for) operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Capital expenditures 

Net cash from (used for) investing activities 

Net increase (decrcase) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning ofyear 

Cash and cash equivalents, end ofyear  

19 6,403 4,931 4,556 
- 941 317 315 

- (59,304) (27,320) (71,858) 
(3,699) 1,855 (655) 363 

(757) (4,745) (2.728) 512 
(3,761) (10,079) (6,509) (3,614) 

11,802 (215,800) (87,011) (53,696) 

11,802 (215,800) (87,011) (53,696) 

146,682 275,994 430,563 82,936 - 

$ 158,484 $ 60,194 $ 343,552 $ 29,240 $ 

- 15,909 
- 1,573 

- (158,482) 
- (2,136) 

- (7.718) 
(23,963) 

(344,705) 

- (344,705) 

936,175 

: $ 591,470 

See accompanyhig NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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Exhibit D (cont.) 

JCFA 
COMBINING STATEMlNTS OF CASH FLOWS 

ËOP. l!IË YËAR ËNI)1;1) JIJNE 30.2021 

Interfind 
CM() West Bank East Bank Lafayette Eliminations 2020 

S - $ (74,236) $ 90,731 $ 1,581 $ - $ 18,076 

728 2,263 17,489 4,702 - 25,182 

14,526 (47,409) 90,792 34,792 - 92,701 
12,935 (349) (645) 4,470 - 16,411 

(7,532) 9,571 5,968 (1,926) - 6,081 
200 50,742 53,943 21,850 126,735 

20,857 (59,418) 258,278 65,469 285,186 

- (27,050) (14,943) - - (41,993) 

- (27,050) (14,943) - - (41,993) 

20,857 (86,468) 243,335 65,469 - 243,193 

125,825 362,462 187,228 17,467 - 692,982 

$ 146,682 $ 275,994 $ 430,563 $ 82,936 $ - $ 936,175 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 
Change in net assets 
Adjustments to reconciie change in net assets to cash and cash equivaients 

from (used for) operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 
Bad debt expense 
(lncrease) decrease in: 

Accounts receivable 
Prepaid expenses 

Increase (decrease) in: 
Accounts payable 
Accrued expenses 

Net cash from (used for) operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED FOR) INVESTING ACT1VITIES: 
Capital expenditures 

Net cash (used for) investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning ofyear 

Cash and cash equivalents, end ofyear 

See accompaning NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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JCFA 
NOTES TO COMBINING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021 

(1) NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Activities 

JCFA (the School) was created as a non-profit corporation under the laws of the State 
ofLouisiana on January 27, 2010. The School applied to and received approval from 
the Jefferson Parish School Board to operate a Type I charter school commencing 
july 1, 2010. The current charter was renewed on July 1, 2020 for an additional three 
years expiring June 30, 2023. On October 19, 2011, the State Board ofElementary 
and Secondary Education (BESE) approved JCFA as an alternative school. The 
School is required to renew their status as an altemative school annually. In 
December 2012, JCFA applied to and received approval from BESE to operate a 
Type 11 charter school at a second location in Jefferson Parish, referred to as the East 
Bank Campus commencing July 1, 20 13. The current contract was renewed on July 1, 
2021 for an additional three years expiring June 20, 2024. In June 2017, JCFA 
applied to and received approval from BESE to operate a Type 11 charter school in 
Lafayette, Louisiana commencing july 1, 2017. The current contract was renewed on 
July 1, 2022 for an additional four years expiring June 30, 2026. 

Basis of Accounting and Financial Reporfin Framework 

The combining financial statements of the School have been prepared on the accrual 
basis of accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAP) as promulgated by the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB). 

Basis of Preseiitation 

The financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) in its Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 
958-210-50-3, Financial Statements ofNot-for-Profit Organ12ations. Under FASB 
ASC 958-210-50-3, the School is required to report information regarding its 
financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets: 

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subj ect to donor-
imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the 
primary objectives ofthe School. The Schools board may designate assets 
without restrictions for specific operational purposes from time to time. 

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by 
donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those 
restrictions will be met by actions of the School or by the passage of time. Other 
donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, where by the donor has stipulated the 
funds be maintained in perpetuity. The School had no assets with donor 
restrictions as of June 30, 2022 and 202 1. 
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JCFA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL COMBINING STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021 

(1) NATURE OF ACTIVITIES ANÐ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEÐ) 

Basis of Presentation (continueð) 

As of June 30, 2022 and 202 1, there were no net assets with donor restrictions nor 
were there any net assets released from restrictions. 

Use of Estimates 

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those 
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Eciuivalents 

For purposes of the combining statement of cash flows, the School considers all 
unrestricted cash and other highly liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Receivahles 

Grants, notes, and other receivables are stated at the amount the School expects to 
collect from outstanding balances. Management provides for uncollectible amounts 
through a provision for bad debt expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance 
based on its assessment ofthe current status ofindividual accounts. Balances that are 
still outstanding afer management has used reasonable collection efforts are written 
off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. 
As ofJune 30, 2022 and 2021, the combining financial statements do not include an 
estimate for an allowance for doubtful accounts since the School believes all 
receivables are collectable. 

Propertv and EciuiDment 

Property and equipment are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if 
historical cost is not available. Betterments that naturally add to the value of related 
assets or materially extend the useful lives of assets are capitalized. Normal building 
maintenance and minor equipment purchases are included as expenses of the School. 
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method with useful lives oftwo to 
five years. Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 202 1 was 
$15,909 and $25,182, respectively. 
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JCFA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL COMBINING STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021 

(1) NATURE OF ACTIVITIES ANÐ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEÐ) 

Propertv and Eg uinment (continued) 

A11 assets acquired with the Louisiana Department of Education funds are owned by 
the School while used in the purpose for which they were acquired. The Louisiana 
Department ofEducation, however, has a reversionary interest in these assets. Should 
the charter not be renewed, any assets purchased with those funds will revert back to 
the State of Louisiana. 

Revenue Reconition 

The Schools primary sources offunding are through the State Public School Fund 
and federal grants, as well as private donations. Revenues from federal and state 
grants are recorded when the School has a right to reimbursement under the related 
grant, generally corresponding to the incurring of grant related costs by the School, or 
when otherwise earned under the terms of the grants. 

Contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional 
promise to give, or notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional 
promises to give are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have 
been substantially met. The School reports contributions of cash or other assets as 
restricted support if they are received with donor imposed restrictions or requirements 
that limit the use of the donation. A donor restriction ends when a time restriction is 
met or a purpose restriction is accomplished. As restrictions are met, assets are 
reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported as net assets released 
from restrictions in the combining statement of activities. 

Functional Expenses 

The cost ofprogram and supporting services has been summarized on a functional 
basis in the statements ofactivities. This requires the allocation ofcertain costs based 
on total program costs and estimates made by management. Accordingly, certain 
costs have been allocated among program services and supporting services benefited. 
Such allocations are determined by management on an equitable basis. Salaries and 
employee benefits have been allocated based on time and effort. Rent and 
depreciation have been allocated based on square footage. A11 other allocated 
expenses have been allocated based on actual expenses incurred. 
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JCFA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL COMBINING STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021 

(1) NATURE OF ACTIVITIES ANÐ SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEÐ) 

Income Tax Status 

The School has received a tax-exempt ruling under section 501(c)(3) from the 
Interna1 Pevenue Service and, accordingly, is not subect to income tax unless it has 
unrelated trade or business income. Accounting standards provide detailed guidance 
for financial statement recognition, measurement, and disclosure of uncertain tax 
positions recognized in an entity s financial statements. These standards require an 
entity to recognize the financial statement impact of a tax position when it is more 
likely than not that the position will not be sustained upon examination. As of June 
30, 2022 and 2021, the School believes that it has no uncertain tax positions that 
qua1ify for either recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Tax years 
ended June 30, 20 19 and later remain subect to examination by the taxing authorities. 

New Accountin Pronouncement 

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the School adopted FASB ASU No. 2020-07, 
Not-for-Projìt Entities (Topic 958): Presentation and Disclosures by Not-for-ProJìt 

Entitiesfor Contributed Nonfinancial Assets. This Update seeks to increase 
transparency of contributed nonfinancial assets for not-for-profit (NFP) entities 
through enhancements to presentation and disclosure. The adoption of this Update did 
not have a material impact on the schools combing financial statements. 

Ðate of Management Review 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through October 3 1, 2022, which is the date 
the financial statements were available to be issued. 

(2) LIOUIÐITY ANÐ AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 

The following reflects the Schools financial assets as ofJune 30, 2022 and 2021, 
available within one year of the statement of financial position date to meet cash 
needs for general expenditures consisting of the following: 

Cash 
Grants receivable 

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for 
general expenditures within one year 

2022 2021 
$ 591,470 $ 936,175 

424,847 267.93 8 

L016317 $ L204113 

As part ofthe Schools liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial 
assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities, and other obligations 
come due. 
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JCFA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL COMBINING STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021 

(3) GRANTS RECE1VABLES 

Grants receivable as of June 30, 2022 and 202 lconsist of the following: 

2022 2021 

Due from federal government 424,847 $ 267,938 

Total 424.847 $ 267.938 

(4) RETIRLMENT PLAN 

The School provides a 401(k) plan for all regular full-time employees. An employee 
becomes eligible to participate in the plan on the first day ofthe month following the 
date of hire. Contributions to the plan are made by way of pre-tax salary deferrals and 
are made at the sole discretion of the employee up to the maximum amount allowed 
by federal law. The School will make a matching contribution equal to two times the 
amount of the employee contribution up to a maximum of 8%, and all employees are 
immediately vested. For the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the School recorded 
retirement contributions in the amount of $170,960 and $ 169,729, respectively. 

(5) CONCENTRATIONS OF CREÐIT RISK 

The School maintains its cash balances in a financial institution. The cash balances 
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000. At 
fiscal year end June 30, 2022 and 202 1, there were uninsured deposits in the amount 
of$343,399 and $686,549, respectively. 

Approximately 90% and 99% ofthe Schools revenue was received from Federal and 
State grantors for the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

(6) LEASE COMMITMENTS 

The School entered into a commercial lease agreement for Building A at 475 
Iv1anhattan Boulevard, Gretna, Louisiana, under the terms of an operating lease 
expiring June 30, 2021. The lease was renewed for additional year from July 1, 202 1 
until June 30, 2022 for an annual rate of $87,000. The lease was renewed for 
additional year from july 1, 2022 until June 30, 2023 for an annual rate of$87,000. 

The School entered into a commercial lease agreement to lease buildings at 34 10 
Jefferson Highway, Jefferson, Louisiana in July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2018 and was 
extended for additional three years to June 202 1. The lease renewed for additional 
three years starting july 1, 202 1 until June 30, 2024 for the monthly rental rate of 
$8,333 for the 1st  year and $9, 167 for the remaining two years thereaer. 
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JCFA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL COMBINING STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021 

(6) LEASE COMMITMENTS (CONT1JEÐÌ 

The School entered into a commercial lease agreement to lease certain land, building, 
facilities and improvements at 150 1 Ambassador Caffery Parkway, Lafayette, 
Louisiana in May 2017 and has been extended until June 30, 202 1 for a monthly 
rental rate of$6,033 starting in April 1, 2020. As ofMay 2021, the lease has been 
extended for additional year until June 30, 2022, for a monthly rental price of $5,000. 
As ofJune 28 2022, the lease has been extended for additional year until June 30, 
2023, for a monthly rental price of$5,000. 

The School entered into a commercial lease agreement as of August 15, 2020 for the 
buildings at 2106 Deerfield Road, Terrytown, Louisiana under the terms ofan 
operating lease expiring December 3 1, 2020. The lease was renewed on January 1, 
2021 until June 30, 2025 for a monthly rental rate $5,416 until June 30, 2021; $5,750 
from july 1, 2021 until June 30, 2023; and $6,000 from july, 1, 2023 until June 30, 
2025. 

For the year ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, total rent expense amounted to $305,003 
$285,489, respectively. 

The future minimum lease payments under the above leases are as follows: 

 

Year 
2023 
2024 
2025 

Total 

Amount 
$ 326,004 

182,004 
72.000 

580.008 

(7) GRANT PROGRAM CONTINGENCIES  

The School participates in a number of state and federal grant programs, which are 
governed by various rules and regulations. Costs charged to the respective grant 
programs are subect to audit and adustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the 
extent that the School has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the 
grants, refunds of any money received and the collectability of any related receivable 
as of June 30, 2022 and 202 1 might be impaired. In managements opinion, there are 
no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and 
regulations governing state and federal grants; therefore, no provision has been 
recorded in the accompanying combining financial statements for such contingencies. 
Audits ofprior years have not resulted in any significant disallowed costs or refunds. 
Any costs that would be disallowed would be recoguized in the period agreed upon 
by the grantor agency and the School. 
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JCFA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL COMBINING STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021 

(8) ECONOMIC DEPENÐENCY 

The School receives the maority ofits revenue from the State ofLouisiana. 
Minimum Foundation Program (MFP) funding for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 
2021 totaled $3,361,343 and $4,039,425, respectively. Funding was from various 
federal grants passed through the State of Louisiana for the years ended June 30, 202 1 
and 2020 totaled $1,447,112 and $647,703, respectively. The grant amounts are 
appropriated each year by the federal and state governments. If significant budget 
cuts are made at the federal and/or state level, the amount of funds the School 
receives could be reduced signiflcantly and have an adverse impact on its operations. 
Management is not aware of any actions that will significantly affect the amount of 
funds the School will receive in fiscal year 2023 relating to its grant awards. 

(9) NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The FASB has issued Accounting Standards Update (Update) No. 2016-02, Leases. 
This Update seeks to increase transparency and comparability among organizations 
by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and by disclosing 
key information about leasing arrangements. Deferring the effective date ofUpdate 
No. 2016-02, the FASB has issued Update No. 2019-10, Financiai Instruments-
credit Losses (Topic 326,), Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815), and Lease Topic 
842). Update No. 2019-10 permits entities to apply the guidance in Update No. 
2016-02 to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2020, and to 
interim reporting periods within aunual reporting periods beginning after December 
15, 202 1. The FASB further delayed the implementation date by one year through 
ASU 2020-05 Revenuefrom Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and Leases 
(Topic 842). Entities may now apply the guidance in Update No. 2016-02 to annual 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021, and to interim reporting 
periods within annual reporting periods begiuning after December 15, 2022. The 
School plans to adopt this Update as applicable by the effective date. 

(10) RECLASSIFICATIONS 

Certain accounts relating to the prior year have been reclassified to conform to the 
current year presentation with no effect on previously reported net income. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



Sche1u1e 1 

JCFA 
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2022 

Millie Harris, 

Executive Director 

07/01/21 
Time served through 

06/30/22 

Salary 116,859 
Benefits - insurance 5,777 
Benefits - retirement 9349 
Reimbursements 4238 

Total compensation, benefits, and other payments $ 136,223 

(See Indpendent Auditors Report) 
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OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY 
GO VERNMENT A UDITING STANÐARÐS 



 

ERICKSEN KRENTEL. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSJ - ÀNTS 

INDEPENDENT AUIMTORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GO VERNMENTA UÐITING STANÐARÐS 

To the Board ofGoverl1allce of 
JCFA 
New Orleans, LouisiaI1a 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained m Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General ofthe United States, the combining 
financial statements of JCFA (a non-profit corporation), which comprise the combining 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related combining statements of 
activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to 
the combining financial statements, and have issued our report thereon ðated October 31, 2022. 

Report on Interna1 Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the combining financial statements, we considered 
JCFAs internal control over financial reporting (intemal control) as a basis for ðesigning audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 
the combining financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness ofJCFAs internal control. Accordingly, we ðo not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the JCFAs internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course ofperforming their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity s financial statements will not be prevented, 
or ðetecteð and corrected on a timely basis. A signijìcant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section anð was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, ðuring our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consiðer to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

4227 Canal Street Ericksen Krente LLP 2895 Highway 190, Ste 213 

New Orleans, LA 701 19 www. E ri cksen Kre ntel co rn Mandeville, LA 70471 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Boarð of Govemance of 
JCFA 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether JCFAs combining financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, anð grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, proviðing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective ofour audit, and accorðingly, we ðo not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests discloseð no instances of noncompliance or 
other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance anð the results of that testing, and not to proviðe an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the JCFAs internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an auðit 
performed in accordance with GovernmentAuditing Standards in considering JCFAs intemal 
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
Unðer Louisiana Revised Statute 24:5 13, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a 
public ðocument. 

October 3 1, 2022 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

L ¿f 

Certified Public Accountants 
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SINGLE AUÐIT SECTION 



ERICKSEN KRENTEL 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSJ - 

INDEPENÐENT AUIMTORS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIREÐ BY 

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Governance of 
JCFA 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Report oti Cotnpliatice for iEach Major Federal Progratn 

Opinion on Each Major Federa! Prograin 

We have auðited JCFAs compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified as 
subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect 
on each ofJCFAs major federal programs for the year endeð June 30, 2022. JCFAs major 
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, JCFA complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

Basisfor Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standarðs generally accepted 
in the Uniteð States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; anð the 
audit requirements ofTitle 2 U.S. Code ofFederalRegulations Part 200, Unform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, andAudit Requirementsfor Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further 
describeð in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be indepenðent of JCFA anð to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient anð appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of 
JCFAs compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities ofManagementfor Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the 
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, anð provisions of contracts or grant agreements 
applicable to JCFAs federal programs. 

4227 Canal Street Ericksen Krente LLP 2895 Highway 190, 5te 213 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Boarð ofDirectors 
JCFA 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Auditors Responsibilitiesfor the Audit ofcompliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with 
the compliance requirements referreð to above occurreð, whether due to fraud or error, and 
express an opinion on JCFAs compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducteð in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. 
The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the overriðe of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is consiðered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of 
the report on compliance about JCFAs compliance with the requirements of each major feðeral 
program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accorðance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, anð the Uniform Guiðance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and mamtam professional skepticism throughout the 
audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, 
anð design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarðing JCFAs compliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above anð performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of JCFAs intemal control over compliance relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit proceðures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test 
anð report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of JCFAs intemal 
control over compliance. Accorðingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those chargeð with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material 
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Boarð ofDirectors 
JCFA 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Report on Iiiterna1 Control over Compliaiice 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course ofperforming 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and correcteð, on 
a timely basis. A signijìcant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, m internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in intemal control 
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in 
the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed 
to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies in intemal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during 
our auðit we dið not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we 
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guiðance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. Unðer Louisiana Revised Statute 24:5 13, this report is distributed by the Legislative 
Auditor as a public document. 

October 3 1, 2022 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

L ¿f 

Certified Public Accountants 
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JCFA 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENÐITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENÐED JVNE 30. 2022 

Federal Federal 
Federal Grantor/Pass-through Grantor/ AL Disbursements/ 

Program Title Number Expenditures 

U.S. Denartnient of Education 
Pass-through programfrom Louisiana Department ofEducation 

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies 
Special Education Cluster (IDEA): 

Speciai Education - Grants to States 
Total Special Education Cluster 

Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 
Comprehensive Literacy Development 
Student Support and Academic Enrichment Program 
COVID-19 Elementary and Secondaiy School Emergency ReliefFund 
COVJD-19 Elementary and Secondaiy School Emergency ReliefFund 

Total Education Stabilization Fund 
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 
Teacher and School Leader Incentive Grants 

Total U.S. Department ofEducation 

Total expenditures of federal awards 

84.010 $ 162,291 

84.027 $ 57,934 
57934 

84.367 13,683 
84.371 25,543 
84.424 20,488 

84.425D 397,446 
84.425U 738,017 

1,135,463 
84.048 
84.374 

1,415,402 

$ 1,415,402 

(See I ndependent Auditors Report) 
2) 



JCFA 
NOTES TO SCHEDUTÆ OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWÄRI)S 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 

(1) BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the schedule) includes the 
federal grant activity of JCFA under programs of the federal government for the year 
ended June 30, 2022. The information in the schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements ofTitle 2 US. Code ofFederalRegulations Part 200, Unform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirementsfor Federal 
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents oniy a seiected portion ofthe 
operations of JCFA, it is not intended to and does not present the financiai position, 
changes in net assets, or cash flows of JCFA. 

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expense Recognition 

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accruai basis of accounting. 
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowed or are limited as to 
reimbursement. 

Payments to Su1recipients 

There were no payments to subrecipients for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. 

(3) INÐIRECT COST RATE 

JCFA has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate aiiowed under the 
Uniform Guidance. 
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JCFA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 

I. SUMMARY OF AJÐITORS REPORTS 

1. The auditors report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of 
JCFA. 

2. No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relating to the audit 
of the financial statements are reported in the Independent Auditors Report on Interna1 
Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an 
Audit of Financial Statements Prepared in Accordance with Governinent Auditing 
Standards. 

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of JCFA were 
reported in the Independent Auditors Report on Interna1 Control over Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit ofFinancial 
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

4. No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses relating to the audit of the major federal 
award programs are reported in the Independent Auditors Report on Compliance for Each 
Major Program and on Interna1 Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance. 

5. The auditors report on compliance for the major federal award programs for JCFA 
expresses an un=modified opinion on all major federal programs. 

6. There were no audit findings required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 
200.516(a). 

7. The programs tested as major programs were the Education Stabilization Fund (AL Nos. 
84.425D and 84.425U). 

8. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000. 

9. JCFA was determined not to be a low-risk auditee. 

10.A management letter was not issued for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

11. FINÐINGS — FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUÐIT 

There were no findings related to the combining financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2022. 

111. FINÐINGS ANÐ QUESTIONEÐ COSTS - MAJOR FEÐERAL AWARÐ PROGRAM 
AUÐIT 

There were no findings related to major federal awards programs for the year ended June 
30, 2022. 
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JCFA 
SUARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JVNE 30. 2022 

L INTERNAL CONTROL AND COMPLIANCE MATERIAL 
TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Not applicable 

11. INTERNAL CONTROL ANÐ COMPLIANCE MATERIAL 
TO THE FEDERAL AWARDS 

Not applicable. Single audit not required for the year ended June 30, 2021. 

111. MANAGEMENT LETTER 

Not applicable 
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SCHEDULES REQUIREÐ BY STATE LAW 
(PERFORMANCE STATISTICAL DATA) 



ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSU ANTS 

INDEPENÐENT ACCOUNTANTS REPORT ON 
APPLYING AGREEÐ-UPON PROCEÐURES 

To the Boarð of Govemance of 
JCFA 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

We have performeð the procedures enumerateð below on the performance and statistical data 
accompanying the annual financial statements ofJCFA for the fiscal year endeð June 30, 2022; and 
to determine whether the specifieð scheðules are free of obvious errors anð omissions, in compliance 
with Louisiana Reviseð Statute 24:5 14 I. Management of JCFA is responsible for its performance 
anð statistical data. 

JCFA has agreed to and acknowledgeð that the proceðures performed are appropriate to meet the 
intendeð purpose ofthe engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the performance 
anð statistical data accompanying the annual financial statements. Additionally, the Louisiana 
Department of Eðucation and the Louisiana Legislative Auðitor have agreed to and acknowledgeð 
that the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. This report may not be suitable for 
any other purpose. The proceðures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of 
this report anð may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible 
for determining whether the proceðures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associateð findings are as follows: 

General Fund Instructiona1 and Support Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue Sources 
(Scheðule 1) 

1. We selected a sample of 25 transactions, revieweð supporting ðocumentation, anð 
observed that the sampled expenditures/revenues are classified correctly and are reporteð 
in the proper amounts for each ofthe following amounts reported on the scheðule: 

a. Total General Funð Instructiona1 Expenðitures, 
b. Total General Funð Equipment Expenðitures, 
c. Total Local Taxation Revenue, 
d. Total Local Eamings on Investment in Real Property, 
e. Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes, 
f. Nonpublic Textbook Revenue, 
g. Nonpublic Transportation Revenue. 

Exceptions: None 

4227 Canal Street Ericksen Krente LLP 2895 Highway 190, Ste 213 

New Orleans, LA 701 19 www. E ri cksen Kre ntel co m Mandeville, LA 70471 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CFRTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Boarð of Govemance of 
JCFA 

Class Size Characteristics (Schedule 2) 

2. We obtained a list ofclasses by school, school type, and class size as reported on the 
schedule. We then traced a sample of 10 classes to the October 1 roll books for those 
classes and observed that the class was properly classified on the scheðule. 

Exceptions: None 

Education Levels/Experience of Public School Staff (NO SCHEDULE) 

We obtained October 1 st PEP data submitted to the Department of Education (or 
equivalent listing prepared by management), incluðing full-time teachers, principals, anð 
assistant principals by classification, as well as their level of education and experience, 
and obtained managements representation that the data/listing was complete. We then 
selecteð a sample of 25 individuals, traced to each individual s personnel file, and 
observed that each inðividuals education level and experience was property classified on 
the PEP data or equivalent listing prepared by management. 

Exceptions: One employees education level was reported incorrectly, anð one 
employees experience level was reported incorrectly. 

Public School StaffData: Average Salaries (NO SCHEDULE) 

4. We obtained June 30th  PEP data submitted to the Department ofEðucation (or equivalent 
listing provided by management) of all classroom teachers, incluðing base salary, extra 
compensation, and ROTC or rehired retiree status, as well as full-time equivalents, and 
obtaineð managements representation that the data/listing was complete. We then 
selecteð a sample of 25 individuals, traced to each inðividual s personnel file, and 
observeð that each individuals salary, extra compensation, and full-time equivalents 
were properly incluðed on the PEP data (or equivalent listing prepared by management). 

Exceptions: None 

We were engageð by JCFA to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our 
engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants, and the standards applicable to attestation engagements contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Uniteð States Comptroller General. We were not 
engaged to and dið not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective ofwhich would 
be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the performance and statistical data. 
Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional 
procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that woulð have been reported to you. 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFI[D PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Boarð of Govemance of 
JCFA 

This report is intenðeð solely to describe the scope and results of testing performed on the 
performance and statistical data accompanying the annual financial statements of the JCFA, as 
required by Louisiana Revised Statue 24:5 14.!, and for the information and use of JCFA, the 
Louisiana Department of Education, and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor. Accordingly, this report 
is not suitable for any other purpose anð is not intended to be and shoulð not be used by anyone other 
than those specifieð parties. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributeð by the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

October 31, 2022 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

£ ¿f 

Certified Public Accountants 
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Schedule 1 

JCFA 
GENERAL FUND INSTRUCTIONAL ANÐ SUPPORT EXPENDITURES AND 

CERTAIN LOCAL REVENUE SOURCES 
FOR THE YEAR ENÐED JUNE 30. 2022 

GENERAL FUND INSTRUCTIONAL AND EOUIPMENT EXPENDITURES 

General Fund lnstructional Expenditures: 
Teacher and Student Interaction Activities: 

Classroom teacher salaries 
Other instructional staff salaries 
Instructiona1 staffemployee benefits 
Purchased professional and technical services 
Instructiona1 materials and supplies 
Instructiona1 equipment 

îotal teacher and students interaction activities 

Other instructional activities 

Pupil support services 
Less: Equipment for pupil support services 

Net pupil support services 

Instructiona1 staff services 
Less: Equipment for instructiona1 staffservices 

Net instructional staff services 

Schooi administration 
Less: equipment for school administration 

Net school administration 

Total gencral fund instructiona1 expenditures (total ofcolumn B) 

Total General fund equipment expenditures 

CERTAIN LOCAL REVENUE SOURCES 
Total local taxation revenue 

Total local eamings on investment in real prpcI1y 

Total state revenue in lieu oftaxes 

Nonpublic textbook revenue 

Nonpublic transportation revenue  

Column A Column B 

$ 538,363 
92,199 

199,940 
203,064 
64,507 

$ 1,098,073 

260,734 

260,734 

270,664 

270,664 

1,026,141 

1,026,141 

$ 2,655,612 

$ 

(Scc lndcpcndcnt Accountants Rcport on Applying Agreed-(pon Procedures) 
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Schedule 2 

JCFA 
CLASS SIZE CHARACTERISTICS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 
ASOFOCTOBER 12O21 

_____________________ ____________ CLASS SIZE RANGE ____________ 
_____________________________ 1-20 21-26 27-33 34+ 
SCHOOL TYPE: l>ciceiìt Nuinbcr Pcrcent Nuinbci Percent Number Percent Number 
Elementary ______ - - - - 
Elementaiy/Activity Classes - - - - 
Middle/Jr. High _______ - - - - 
Middle/Jr. High Activity Classes - - - - 
High 99% 188 - - 2 O% - 
HighActivityClasses 93% 14 - - - - 7% ______ 
Comhination - - - - - - - - 
Combination Activity Classes - - - - - - - - 

Note: The Board ofElementary and Secondary Education has set specific limits on the maximum size of 
classes at various grade levels. The maximum enrollment in grades K-3 is 26 students and maximum 
enrollinent in grades 4- 12 is 33 students. These limits do not apply to activity classes such as physical 
education, chorus, band, and other classes without maximtim enrollment standards. Therefore, these classes 
are included only as separate line items. 

(See Independent Accountants Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures) 
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atitbytcess 

JCFA 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN - BESE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 

October 31, 2022 

Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

JCFA respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for items ideiitified pursuaiit to the 
Statewide Agreeð-Upon Procedures Engagement prescribeð by you. 

Name anð adðress of independent public accounting firm: 

Ericksen Krentel LLP 
4227 Canal Street 
New Orleans, LA 701 19 

Engagement Period: july 1, 2021 — June 30, 2022 

The exceptions from the BESE Agreeð-Upon Procedures Report are discussed below: 

Education Levels/Experience ofPublic Scliool Staff(NO SCHEÐULE) 

Exceptions: One employee s education level was reporteð incorrectly, and one employee s 
experience level was reporteð incorrectly. 

Manaements Response to Exceptions: Management has noted anð agrees with the above exceptions. 
Management will consider the effects of such exceptions and the need to enhance key controls or 
compensating controls in the identified areas. 

If there are any questions regarding this plan, please call Millie Harris at (504) 4 10-3 12 1. 

Sincerely, 

Title 
Executive Director 

Millie Harris, Executive Director 
Leslie Leavoy, Board of Governance Chair 

JCFA 0 Manhattan Blvd. . Harvey, Louisiana 70058 0 Office 504-410-3121 •Fax Number 504-410-3120 
JCFA East Banlc 0 3410 Jefferson Highway. Jefferson, Louisiana 70121 0 Office 504-410-3280 

JCFA Lafayette 0 1501 Ambassador Caffery Parlcway. Lafayette, Louisiana 70506 0 Office 337-703-4448 
Mailing Address• P.O. Box 384• Gretna, Louisiana 70054 



LOUISIANA LEGISLATIVE AUDITOR 

STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

JCFA 

HARVEY. LOUISIANA 

FOR THE YEAR ENÐED 

JUNE 30, 2022 

ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTFFFED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 



ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOIJNTANTS • CONSLJ NTS 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Board of Govemance of 
JCFA 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor s (LLA s) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
(SAUPs) for the fiscal period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. JCFAs management is 
responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

JCFA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the 
intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas 
identified in LLAs SAUPs for the fiscal period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. 
Additionally, LLA has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are 
appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The 
procedures performed may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may 
not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for determining 
whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are attached in Schedule 1 . 

We were engaged by JCFA to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted 
our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of 
Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We 
were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of 
which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have 
been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of JCFA and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures 
engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope oftesting performed on those C/C areas 
identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or 
compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana 
Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

October 31, 2022 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

4227 Canal Street 

New Orleans, LA 701 19 

P:(504)486-7275 F:(504)482-2516 
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Certified Public Accountants 
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Schedule 1 

JCFA 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

JULY 1, 2021 -JUNE3O,2022 

WRITTEN POLICIES ÁND PROCEDURES 

1. Procedures: Obtain and inspect the entitys written policies and procedures and observe 
whether they address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to 
public funds and the entitys operations: 

a) Budgeting, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to 
the vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process ofpurchase requisitions and 
purchase orders; (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) 
documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

c) Disburseinents, including processing, reviewing, and approving. 

d) Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include managements actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agency fund additions 
(e.g., periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing 
after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency 
fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving 
time and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval 
process for employee(s) rate of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate 
schedules. 

) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard 
terms and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring 
process. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, ifapp1icab1e), including (1) how 
cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation 
requirements, (4) required approvers of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage 
(e.g., determining the reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

h) Travel and Expense Reirnbursernent, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) 
dollar thresholds by category of expense, (3) documentation requirements, and 
(4) required approvers. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R. S.) 
42: 1 1 1 1- 1 12 1, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to 
monitor possible ethics violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is 
maintained to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified of any 
changes to the entitys ethics policy. 



Schedule 1 (Continued) 

JCFA 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

JULY 1, 2021 -JUNE3O,2022 

WRITTEN POLICIES ÁND PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMIVIA 
reporting requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service 
requirements. 

k) Inforrnation Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, inc1uding (1) 
identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in 
a separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification 
that backups can be restored, (4) use ofantivirus software on all systems, (5) timely 
application of all available system and sofware patches/updates, and (6) identification 
ofpersonnel, processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

1) Sexua!Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual 
reporting. 

Results: The written policies and procedures entirely address the functions of budgeting, 
purchasing, disbursements, receipts/collections, payroll/personnel, contracting, credit cards, 
travel and expense reimbursement, and ethics. Debt is not applicable as the Organization has 
no debt and sexual harassment is not applicable as the Organization is a charter school not 
subject to the sexual harassment law, R.S. 42:344. Information technology/disaster 
recovery/business continuity is not addressed. 

BOÁRD OR FINANCE COMMITTEE 

2. Procedures: Obtain and inspect the boardlfinance committee minutes for the fiscal period, 
as well as the board s enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect 
during the fiscal period, and: 

a) Observe that the board/finance committee met with a quoriìm at least monthly, or 
on a frequency in accordance with the board s enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, 
or other equivalent document. 

b) Observe that the minutes referenced or included financial activity relating to public 
funds if those public funds comprised more than 10% of the entity s collections 
during the fiscal period. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the 
unassigned fund balance in the general fund. Ifthe general fund had a negative 
ending unassigned fund balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the 
minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included a 
formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 



Schedule 1 (Continued) 

JCFA 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

JULY 1, 2021 —JUNE3O,2022 

Results: Obtained the board committee meeting minutes for fiscal year. The board meets on 
a monthly basis and financial comparison of monthly and annual financial comparisons were 
discussed. 

BANK RECONCILIA TIONS 

3. Procedures: Obtain a listing ofentity baiìk accounts for the fiscal period from management 
and management s representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify 
the entitys main operating account. Select the entitys main operating account and randomly 
select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from 
the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for 
each selected account, and observe that: 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of 
the related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member 
who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each baiìk 
reconciliation (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

c) Management has documentation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that 
have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if 
applicable. 

Results: Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of 
the related statement closing date. Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of 
management/board member who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has 
reviewed each bank reconciliation. Bank reconciliations had no reconciling items outstanding 
for more than 12 months at the statement closing date. The reconciled balance for the final 
month of the fiscal period agrees to the general ledger. 

COLLECTIONS 

4. Procedures: Obtain a listing ofdeposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for 
cash/checks/money orders (cash) are prepared and management s representation that the 
listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites ifless than 5): 

5. Procedures: For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing ofcollection locations and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection 
location for each deposit site (i.e., 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and 
inspect written policies and procedures relating to employee j ob duties (if no written policies 
or procedures, inquire ofemployees about theirjob duties) at each collection location, and 
observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection location such that: 

a) Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 
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b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for 
preparing/making bank deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for 
reconciling collection documentation (e.g., pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting 
collection entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another 
employee/official is responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to 
the deposit. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger 
and/or subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions, are not 
responsible for collecting cash, unless another employee/official verifies the 
reconciliation. 

Results: The Organization has separate employees for collecting cash and reconciling cash 
documentation. The employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting 
collection entries to the general ledger. The employee responsible for reconciling collections 
is not responsible for collecting cash. 

6. Procedures: Obtain form management a copy ofthe bond or insurance policy for theft 
covering all employees who have access to cash. Observe the bond or insurance policy for 
theft was enforced during the fiscal period. 

Results: The Organization has an insurance policy that covers theft and it was enforced 
during the fiscal period. 

7. Procedures: Randomly select two deposit dates for each ofthe 5 barik accounts selected for 
procedure #3 under Bank Reconciliations above (select the next deposit date 
chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select 
a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). Alternately, the practitioner may 
use a source document other than bank statements when selecting the deposit dates for 
testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, etc. Obtain 
supporting documentation for each ofthe 10 deposits and: 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the barik statement. 
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d) Observe the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection 
location or the deposit is less than $ 100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or 
drawer). 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

Results: The related collection documentation was traced to deposit slips. The deposit slip 
total agrees to the actual deposit per the bank statement. Regular periodic deposits were 
made after collection. The actual deposit per the bank statement agreed to the general ledger. 

NON-PA YROLL DISBURSEMENTS (EXCL UDING CARD PURCHASES/PA YMENTS, 
TRA VEL REIMB URSEMENTS, AND PETTY CASH PURCHÁSESJ 

8. Procedures: Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and 
management s representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all 
locations ifless than 5): 

9. Procedures: For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing ofthose employees 
involved with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and 
procedures relating to employee job duties (if the agency has no written policies and 
procedures, inquire ofemployees about theirjob duties), and observe thatjob duties are 
properly segregated such that: 

f) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a 
purchase, and placing an order/making the purchase. 

g) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

h) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying 
vendor files unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes 
to vendor files. 

i) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives 
the signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing 
payments. 

Results: The Organization had at least two employees involved in initiating a purchase 
request, approving a purchase, placing an order/máking the purchase, and processing and 
approving payments to vendors. The employee responsible for processing payments is 
prohibited from adding/modiying vendor files unless another employee is responsible for 
periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. Either the employee responsible for signing 
checks mails the payment or gives the signed checks to another employee to mail who is not 
responsible for processing payments. 
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10. Procedures: For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entitys non-payroll 
disbursement transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain 
managements representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 
disbursements for each location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction, and: 

a) Observe that the disbursement matched the related original itemized invoice and 
supporting documentation indicates deliverables included on the invoice were received 
by the entity. 

b) Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g. initial/date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

Results: The disbursements matched the related original invoice/billing statement. The 
disbursement documentation included evidence of segregation of duties. 

CREÐIT CARDS/ÐEBIT CARÐS/P-CARDS 

1 1. Procedure: Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, 
fuel cards, and P-cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the 
names ofthe persons who maintained possession ofthe cards. Obtain managements 
representation that the listing is complete. 

Results: Obtained a listing of all active credit cards and representation the listing is 
complete. 

12. Procedures: Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards 
if less than 5) that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly 
statement or combined statement for each card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly 
bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, and: 

a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, 
exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing 
(or electronically approved), by someone other than the authorized card holder. [Note: 
Requiring such approval may constrain the legal authority of certain public officials (e.g., 
mayor ofa Lawrason Act municipality); these instances should not be reported.] 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

Results: The monthly statements were approved in writing. The Executive Director approved 
all monthly credit card statements. There were no finance charges an1/or late fees assessed on 
the selected statements. 



Schedtile l (Coiitiiitied) 

JCFA 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

JULY 1, 2021 -JUNE3O,2022 

CREÐIT CARÐS/ÐEBIT CARDS/P-CARÐS (CONTINUEÐ) 

13.Procedure: Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under # 12 above, 
excluding fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from 
each statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e., each card 
should have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each transaction, observe it is supported 
by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written 
documentation ofthe business/public purpose, and (3) documentation ofthe individuals 
participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing receipts, the practitioner should 
describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management had a compensating 
control to address missing receipts, such as a missing receipt statement that is subject to 
increased scrutiny. 

Results: Each of the selected transactions were supported by (1) an original itemized receipt 
that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the 
business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for 
meal charges only). 

TRA VEL ANÐ TRA VEL-RELA TEÐ EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENTS (EXCL UÐING 
CARD TRANSACTIONS) 

14.Procedures: Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense 
reimbursements during the fiscal period and managements representation that the listing or 
general ledger is complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense 
reimbursement forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as 
well as the supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe the approved reimbursement rate is no more 
than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www. gsa. gov). 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure 
#lh). 

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone 
other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

Results: Each reimbursement agreed to the itemized receipt, contained supporting 
documentation ofthe business/public purpose, was reviewed and approved by someone other 
than the person receiving the reimbursement. 
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CONTRA CTS 

15. Procedures: Obtain from management a listing of all agreements/contracts for professional 
services, materials and supplies, leases, anð construction activities that were initiateð or 
renewed during the fiscal period. Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent 
selection source, such as an active vendor list. Obtain management s representation that the 
listing is complete. Ranðomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the 
listing, excluding the practitioner s contract, and: 

a) Observe that the contract was bid in accordance with the Louisiana public Bid Law (e.g., 
solicited quotes or bids, aðvertised), ifrequired by law. 

b) Observe that the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if required by 
policy or law (e.g., Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe that the original contract terms 
proviðed for such an amendment and that the amendments were made in compliance with 
contract terms (e.g., if approval is required for any amendment, was approval 
documented) 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain 
the supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the 
invoice anð related payment agreed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Results: The five sampled contracts were not required by law to be bid in accordance with 
the Louisiana Procurement Code or Public Bid Law. Each contract was approved by the 
governing board. There were no amendments to the contracts and all the payments agreed to 
the terms and conditions ofthe contract. 

PA YROLL ANÐ PERSONNEL 

16. Procedures: Obtain a listing of employees and officials employeð during the fiscal period, 
and management s representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees 
or officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to 
authorizeð salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

17. Procedures: Ranðomly select one pay perioð during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees 
or officials selected under #16 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for 
the pay period, and: 

a) Observe that all selected employees or officials documel1ted their daily attendance and 
leave (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory). 

b) Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected ernployees or 
officials. 
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PÁ YROLL ÁNÐ PERSONNEL (CONTINUEÐ) 

c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entitys 
cumulative leave records. 

d) Observe the rate paid to the employees or officials agree to the authorized salary/pay rate 
found within the personnel file. 

Results: Each employee selected had documentation of daily attendance and leave, 
supervisors approved the attendance and leave forms, any leave accrued or taken during the 
pay period is reflected in the cumulative leave records and the observed pay rate agreed to 
the authorized personnel file. 

18.Procedures: Obtain a listing ofthose employees or officials that received termination 
payments during the fiscal period and managements representation that the list is complete. 
Randomly select two employees or officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and 
pay rates used in management s termination payment calculations and the entity s policy on 
termination payments. Agree the hours to the employees or officials cumulative leave 
records, agree the pay rates to the employees or officials authorized pay rates in the 
employees or officials personnel files and agree the termination payment to entity policy. 

Results: The termination payment calculations agreed to the hours, employees cumulative 
leave record, and pay rate. 

19.Procedures: Obtain managements representation that employer and employee portions of 
payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health insurance premiums, and workers 
compensation premiums have been paid, and associated forms have been filed, by required 
deadlines. 

Results: Obtained management s representation that all taxes, payroll taxes, retirement 
contribution, and employee benefit premiums had been paid and required forms were filed 
timely. 

ETHICS 

20. Procedures: Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under 
Payroll and Personnel above, obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a) Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour 
of ethics training during the fiscal period. 

b) Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee and official were notified of 
any changes to the entitys ethics policy during the fiscal period, as applicable. 

Results: Each employee completed one hour of ethics training and received notification of 
changes to the Organizations ethics policy. 
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DEB T SER VIGE 

21. Procedures: Obtain a listing ofbonds/notes issued during the fiscal period and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. Select all bonds/notes on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that State Bond Commission approval was 
obtained for each bond/note issued. 

Results: Not applicable. The Organization did not issue bonds/notes during the fiscal period. 

22. Procedures: Obtain a listing ofbonds/notes outstanding at the end ofthe fiscal period and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bondlnote, 
inspect debt covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and 
payments, and agree actual reserve balances and payments to those required by debt 
covenants (including contingency funds, short-lived asset funds, or other funds required by 
the debt covenants). 

Results: Not applicable. For the one note selected, the Organization is not required by a debt 
covenant to maintain a reserve balance. 

FRÁ IJD 

23. Procedures: Obtain a listing ofmisappropriations ofpublic funds and assets during the fiscal 
period and managements representation that the listing is complete. Select all 
misappropriations on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity 
reported the misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the 
parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

Results: There were no misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal 
period. 

24. Procedures: Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice 
required by R.S. 24:523. 1 concerning the reporting ofmisappropriation, fraud, waste, or 
abuse ofpublic funds. 

Results: The Organization has posted the required notice on its premises and but not its 
website. 

INFORMÁ TION TECHNOLOGY/DISASTER RECOVER Y/BUSINESS CONTINUTY 

25. Procedures: Perform the following procedures: 

a) Obtain and inspect the entity s most recent documentation that it has backed up its 
critical data (if no written documentation, inquire of persounel responsible for backing 
up critical data) and observe that such backup occurred within the past week. If 
backups are stored on a physical medium (e.g., tapes, CDs), observe evidence that 
backups are encrypted before being transported. 
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INFORMÁ TION TECHNOLOGY/ÐISASTER RECO VER Y/BUSINESS CONTINUTY 
(CONTINUED) 

b) Obtain and inspect the entity s most recent documentation that it has tested/verified 
that its backups can be restored (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel 
responsible for testing/verifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the 
test/verification was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

c) Obtain a listing of the entity s computers currently in use and their related locations, 
and management s representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 
computers and observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers 
have current and active antivirus software and that the operating system and 
accounting system software in use are currently supported by the vendor. 

Results: We performed the procedures and discussed the results with management. 

SEXUAL HARÁSSMENT 

26. Procedures: Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under 
Payroll and Personnel above, obtain sexual harassment training documentation from 

management, and observe the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed 
at least one hour of sexual harassment training during the calendar year. 

27. Procedures: Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint 
procedure on its website (or in a conspicuous location on the entitys premises ifthe entity 
does not have a website). 

28. Procedures: Obtain the entity s annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, 
observe that the report was dated on or before February 1, and observe that it includes the 
applicable requirements ofR.S. 42:344. 

a) Number and percentage ofpublic servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

b) Number of sexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

c) Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred; 

d) Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or 
corrective action; and 

e) Ämount oftime it took to resolve each complaint. 

Results: The Organization as a charter school is not subect to the sexual harassment law, 
R.S. 42:344. 



atitbytcess 

Louisiana Legislative Auditor 

JCFA respectfully submits the following corrective action plan for items identified pursuant to the 
Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Engagement prescribed by you. 

Name and address of mdependent public accounting firm: 

Ericksen Krentel LLP 
4227 Canal Street 
New Orleans, LA 701 19 

Engagement Period: July 1, 2021 — JuI1e 30, 2022 

The exceptions from the Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures Report are ðiscussed below: 

Written P()licies and Procedures 

Exceptions: None of the functions of disaster recovery/business continuity are addresseð by the 
entitys written policies and procedures. 

Fraud 

Exceptions: The entity does not have posted on its website the notice required by R.S. 24:523. 1 
concerning the reporting ofmisappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse ofpublic funds. 

Manaements Response to Exceptions: Management has noted and agrees with the above exceptions. 
The Organizations website contains very minimal information as the Organization is in the process of 
overhauling the entire site. Management will consider the effects of such exceptions and the need to 
enhance key controls or compensating controls in the identified areas. 

Ifthere are any questions regarding this plan, please call Millie Harris at (504) 410-3 121. 

Sincerely, 

Executive Director, JCFA 
Si Title 

I 
Millie Harris, Executive Director 

Leslie Leavoy, Board of Governance Chair 
JCFA 0 Manhattan Blvd. . Harvey, Louisiana 70058 0 Office 504-410-3121 •Fax Number 504-410-3120 

JCFA East Banlc 0 3410 Jefferson Highway. Jefferson, Louisiana 70121 0 Office 504-410-3280 
JCFA Lafayette 0 1501 Ambassador Caffery Parlcway. Lafayette, Louisiana 70506 0 Office 337-703-4448 

Mailing Address• P.O. Box 384• Gretna, Louisiana 70054 
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